
  
   

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY  
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
SDLF Platinum-Level of Governance 

  
  

  

  
 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

AGENDA PACKET 
  

Regular Board Meeting  
Wednesday, September 15, 2021 

  
7:00 P.M. Regular Board Meeting 

  
Community Center 

1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard 
 
 
 

 

President – Bryon Gutow • Vice-President – Kevin Graves • Director – Ashley Porter • Director – Michael Callahan • Director – Carolyn Graham 
 

 

1



 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Agenda for September 1, 2021 - Pg.1 

 

 
 
 
NOTICE OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday September 15, 2021  
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 

NOTICE 
Coronavirus COVID-19 

 
In accordance with the Governor’s Executive Order N-08-21, and for the period in which the Order 
remains in effect, the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Board will hold public 
meetings via teleconferencing as Board Chambers remain closed to the public. 
 
To accommodate the public during this period of time that the Board’s Chambers are closed to the public, 
the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Board of Directors has arranged for members of 
the public to observe and address the meeting as follows: 
 

TO ATTEND BY WEBINAR:  
 

Please register for Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors at: (copy and paste into your browser 
the registration URL) 

 
Registration URL: https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/7199887329425679886 
Webinar ID# 938-878-027 

 
After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the 
webinar by computer or by phone. 

 
For listen only mode dial: (415) 655-0052   ID# 315-017-733 

If there is any disruption to the meeting due to unforeseen circumstances we will continue via 
teleconference. 

 
TO ATTEND BY TELECONFERENCE 
 

Toll-free Dial-in Number (877) 778-1806 
CONFERENCE CODE 891949 

 
Download Agenda Packet and Materials at http://www.todb.ca.gov/  

 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

1. Call business meeting to order 7:00 p.m. 
2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
3. Roll Call. 
  

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 
During Public Comments, the public may address the Board on any issue within the District’s jurisdiction 
which is not on the Agenda. The public may comment on any item on the Agenda at the time the item is 
before the Board for consideration. Any person wishing to speak will have 3 minutes to make their comment. 
There will be no dialog between the Board and the commenter as the law strictly limits the ability of Board 
members to discuss matters not on the agenda. We ask that you refrain from personal attacks during 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 

President – Bryon Gutow • Vice-President – Kevin Graves • Director – Ashley Porter • Director – Michael Callahan • Director – Carolyn Graham 
 

 

SDLF Platinum-Level of Governance 

2

https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/7199887329425679886
http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Agenda for September 1, 2021 - Pg.2 

 

comment, and that you address all comments to the Board only. Any clarifying questions from the Board 
must go through the President. Comments from the public do not necessarily reflect the viewpoint of the 
Directors. 
 

C. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under the CONSENT CALENDAR are considered by the District to be routine and will be 
enacted by one motion. 
1. Approve August 26, 2021, Special Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting minutes. 
2. Approve September 1, 2021, Regular Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting minutes 
3. Approve Register of District Invoices. 
4. Approve Destruction of Town of Discovery Bay Inactive Records. 

 
D. AREA AGENCIES AND LIAISON REPORTS / PRESENTATIONS 
 
E. PRESENTATIONS 
 1. Monthly Water and Wastewater Report from Veolia – August 2021. 

 
F. BUSINESS AND ACTION ITEMS 

1. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding the Resignation of Michael Davies as General Manager. 
2. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding the Appointment of a General Manager and Approval of the 

General Manager’s Employment Contract. 
3. Discussion and Possible Action to Authorize Stantec Consulting to develop the Impacts on Wastewater 

Treatment Plant No. 2 and prepare a Water Reuse Feasibility Study for the Cechinni Ranch and other 
Proposed Development. 

 
G. MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
H. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
I. DIRECTOR REPORTS 
 
J. DIRECTORS REGIONAL MEETING AND TRAINING REPORTS 
 
K. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED 

1. Notice of Intent to Render Administrative Decision – Contra Costa County. 
 
L. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
M.  ADJOURNMENT     

1. Adjourn to the regular meeting on October 6, 2021, beginning at 7:00 p.m. at the Community Center 
located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  

 
“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required 
by the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code § 54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in the meeting should contact the Town of Discovery Bay, at (925) 634-1131, during regular business 
hours, at least forty-eight hours prior to the time of the meeting.” 
 
"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the 
agenda packet are available for public inspection in the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road during 
normal business hours." 

3



 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Special Board of Directors 

Meeting Agenda for August 26, 2021, - Pg.1 

 

 
 
 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Thursday, August 26, 2021 
SPECIAL MEETING 2:00 P.M. 

NOTICE 
Coronavirus COVID-19 

 
In accordance with the Governor’s Executive Order N-08-21, and for the period in which the Order 
remains in effect, the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Board will hold public 
meetings via teleconferencing as Board Chambers remain closed to the public. 
 
To accommodate the public during this period of time that the District Board’s meetings will be held via 
teleconferencing, the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Board of Directors has 
arranged for members of the public to observe and address the meeting telephonically. 
 

TO ATTEND BY TELECONFERENCE:  
Toll-Free Dial-In Number: (877) 252-8822 
CONFERENCE CODE 507599 
 
Download Agenda Packet and Materials at http://www.todb.ca.gov/  

 
SPECIAL MEETING 2:00 P.M. 
A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL  

1. Call business meeting to order 2:00 p.m. 
2. Roll Call – All present. 
  

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 
None. 
 

C. OPEN SESSION DISCLOSURE OF CLOSED SESSION AGENDA 
(Government Code Section 54957.7) Closed session began at 2:00 p.m. 

 
D. CLOSED SESSION: 

1. Public Employee Appointment  
   Title: General Manager  

 
E. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION; REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 

(Government Code Section 54957.1) End closed session and return to open session at 5:50 p.m. No 
reportable action. 

 
F.  ADJOURNMENT     

1. Adjourned at 5:50 p.m. to the regular meeting on September 1, 2021, beginning at 7:00 p.m. at the 
Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  

 
“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required 
by the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code § 54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in the meeting should contact the Town of Discovery Bay, at (925) 634-1131, during regular business 
hours, at least forty-eight hours prior to the time of the meeting.” 
 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
 

President – Bryon Gutow • Vice President – Kevin Graves • Director – Ashley Porter • Director – Michael Callahan • Director – Carolyn Graham 
 

 

SDLF Platinum-Level of Governance 

4

http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Special Board of Directors 

Meeting Agenda for August 26, 2021, - Pg.2 

 

"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the 
agenda packet are available for public inspection in the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road during 
normal business hours." 
 

5



 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes for September 1, 2021 - Pg.1 

 

 
 
 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday September 1, 2021  
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 

NOTICE 
Coronavirus COVID-19 

 
In accordance with the Governor’s Executive Order N-08-21, and for the period in which the Order 
remains in effect, the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Board will hold public 
meetings via teleconferencing as Board Chambers remain closed to the public. 
 
To accommodate the public during this period of time that the Board’s Chambers are closed to the public, 
the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Board of Directors has arranged for members of 
the public to observe and address the meeting as follows: 
 

TO ATTEND BY WEBINAR:  
 

Please register for Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors at: (copy and paste into your browser 
the registration URL) 

 
Registration URL: https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/6729649295969961486 
Webinar ID# 766-493-579 

 
After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the 
webinar by computer or by phone. 

 
For listen only mode dial:  1-631-922-3221   ID# 604-343-328 

If there is any disruption to the meeting due to unforeseen circumstances we will continue via 
teleconference. 

 
TO ATTEND BY TELECONFERENCE 
 

Toll-free Dial-in Number (877) 778-1806 
CONFERENCE CODE 891949 

 
Download Agenda Packet and Materials at http://www.todb.ca.gov/  

 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

1. Call business meeting to order 7:00 p.m. 
2. Pledge of Allegiance – Led by President Bryon Gutow. 
3. Roll Call – All present, Director Carolyn Graham participated via teleconference. 
  

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 
None. 
 

C. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under the CONSENT CALENDAR are considered by the District to be routine and will be 
enacted by one motion. 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
 

President – Bryon Gutow • Vice-President – Kevin Graves • Director – Ashley Porter • Director – Michael Callahan • Director – Carolyn Graham 
 

 

SDLF Platinum-Level of Governance 

6

https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/6729649295969961486
http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes for September 1, 2021 - Pg.2 

 

1. Approve August 12, 2021, Special Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting minutes. 
2. Approve August 18, 2021, Regular Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting minutes 
3. Approve Register of District Invoices. 
Motion made by Vice President Kevin Graves to approve items on the Consent Calendar as presented. 
Second by Director Ashley Porter. 
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 5, NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0 

 
D. AREA AGENCIES AND LIAISON REPORTS / PRESENTATIONS 

1. Assembly Member Jim Frazier, District 11 – Not in Attendance. 
2. Supervisor Diane Burgis, District III Report – Not in Attendance. 
3. Sheriff’s Office Report.  
Sheriff Lieutenant Mark Johnson discussed the arrests and calls reported for the month of August 2021. 
There is a bait car utilized to catch catalytic converter thieves. There was a report of a missing adult who was 
located in San Jose. Community is encouraged to screen everyone who will come work on their property. 
Phone scams are still an issue. 
President Bryon Gutow and Vice President Kevin Graves thanked Sheriff Lieutenant Mark Johnson for 
sending deputies to community events to assist with peacekeeping.  
4. CHP Report – Not in Attendance. 
5. East Contra Costa Fire Protection District Report. 
East Contra Costa Fire Department Battalion Chief Ross Macumber updated the Board on calls and fires in 
Discovery Bay for the month of August. Firefighter was lacerated by glass at a fire on August 16th on 
Monterey Court. Due to an agency’s withdraw, the proposed annexation will be voted on at a later time. 
Reminder was issued to abate weeds and shrubs.   

 
E. PRESENTATIONS 
 1. Introduction of Luhdorff & Scalmanini Consulting Engineers Water Engineer Jason Coleman. 
 Jason Coleman, Water Engineer with Luhdorff & Scalmanini Consulting Engineers introduced himself. He will 

take the place of Water Engineer Justin Shobe due to his relocation. He advised the Board of his excitement 
to work with Town of Discovery Bay and looks forward to helping with its water and wastewater projects.  

 
F. BUSINESS AND ACTION ITEMS 

1. Discussion and Possible Action to Approve Town of Discovery Bay Community Service District’s 
Financial Policy. 

Finance Manager Julie Carter provided the Board with an update regarding the District’s Financial Policy. In 
the process of transferring Town of Discovery Bay money from Contra Costa County control to Town of 
Discovery Bay, creating a financial policy is the first step. Staff is requesting the Board approve the draft of 
Town of Discovery Bay Community Service District’s Financial Policy. 
Motion made by Director Ashley Porter to approve the Draft of the Town of Discovery Bay Community 
Service District’s Financial Policy.  
Second by President Bryon Gutow. 
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 5, NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0 
2. Discussion and Possible Action to File a Notice of Exemption for the Cornell Park Prop 68 Per Capita 
Grant. 
Parks and Landscape Manager Bill Engelman advised the Board that as part of the application for the Per 
Capita Grant, Town of Discovery Bay needs to file a Notice of Exemption (NOE) with Contra Costa County 
as required by California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Staff requests that the Board approve filing the 
NOE with the county to meet CEQA requirements and move forward with the Prop 68 Per Capita Grant 
application. 
Motion made by Vice President Kevin Graves to authorize the filing of the NOE for the Cornell Park Prop 68 
Per Capita Grant.  
Second by Director Ashley Porter. 
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 5, NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0 

 
G. MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
H. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

General Manager Mike Davies advised the Board of an increase in the amount of calls Town staff has 
received which fall in the jurisdiction of Contra Costa County. These calls are referred to area agencies. 
However, as a reminder to the public; 
For concerns regarding potholes and other roadway issues, please call Contra Costa County Public Works 
at (925)313-2000. 
For concerns regarding law enforcement issues, please call the Contra Costa County Sheriff’s Department at 

7



 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes for September 1, 2021 - Pg.3 

 

(925)646-2441. 
Violations and inspections on private property are handled by Contra Costa County Code Enforcement and 
can be reached at (925)655-2807. 
Traffic enforcement is handled by the California Highway Patrol and their phone number is (925)646-4980. 
 

I. DIRECTOR REPORTS 
1. Standing Committee Reports. 

a. Communications Committee Meeting (Committee Members Carolyn Graham and Michael 
Callahan) September 1, 2021 – Canceled. 

b. Parks and Recreation Committee Meeting (Committee Members Bryon Gutow and Ashley Porter) 
September 1, 2021. 
President Bryon Gutow advised the Board of the discussion regarding potential new projects within 
Zone 8 and Zone 9. Conservation Corps has started work on Town parks. 

c. Water and Wastewater Committee Meeting (Committee Members Kevin Graves and Ashley 
Porter) September 1, 2021. 
Director Ashley Porter advised there was an update of the Marina, repairs of pipes at the Lakes 
and an update on the Denitrification Project. 

2. Other Reportable Items. 
 
J. DIRECTORS REGIONAL MEETING AND TRAINING REPORTS 

1. Code Enforcement Agenda Meeting – August 26, 2021 – Director Ashley Porter. 
Director Ashley Porter attended a Code Enforcement Meeting where there was discussion regarding a 
sweep of trailers that are illegally parked and unauthorized parking at the fire house. 

K. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED 
 
L. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
M.  ADJOURNMENT     

1. Adjourned at 7:22 p.m. to the regular meeting on September 15, beginning at 7:00 p.m. at the 
Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  

 
“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required 
by the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code § 54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in the meeting should contact the Town of Discovery Bay, at (925) 634-1131, during regular business 
hours, at least forty-eight hours prior to the time of the meeting.” 
 
"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the 
agenda packet are available for public inspection in the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road during 
normal business hours." 
 
 
 
 
//ym//090321 

8



 
 
 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

September 15, 2021 

 
Prepared By:   Julie Carter, Finance Manager & Lesley Marable, Accountant 
Submitted By:    Michael R. Davies, General Manager  

 
Agenda Title 
 
Approve Register of District Invoices. 
  
Recommended Action 
 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the listed invoices for payment. 
  
Executive Summary 
 
District invoices are paid on a regular basis, and must obtain Board authorization prior to payment.  Staff recommends  
Board authorization in order that the District can continue to pay warrants in a timely manner. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $ 783,174.53 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes   (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #    See listing of invoices.  Category:  Operating Expenses and Capital Improvements        
 
Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
  
Attachments 
 
Request For Authorization to Pay Invoices for the Town of Discovery Bay CSD  2021/2022 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM: C-3 

9



Request for Authorization to Pay Invoices

Anderson Pacific $464,398.00

Veolia Water North America $145,505.39

Herwit Engineering $67,881.20

Adams Pool Solutions $40,500.00

J.W. Backhoe & Construction, Inc. $19,405.21

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System $16,513.82

Precision IT Consulting $7,850.70

Office Team $3,191.08

CVCWA $3,100.00

San Joaquin County Office Of Ed $2,704.00

Pacific Landscape Supply, Inc. $2,661.59

Univar Solutions USA Inc. $2,399.16

U.S. Bank $1,540.00

Verizon Wireless $1,010.72

Express Employment Professionals $929.60

Alhambra $749.55

Brentwood Ace Hardware $574.62

Karina Dugand $564.75

Bailey Bautista $407.43

Office Depot $260.40

Water Utility Refund Customer $203.02

Geotab USA, Inc. $177.75

California State Lands Comm. $159.48

Lesley Marable $95.42

UniFirst Corporation $95.20

Watersavers Irrigation Inc. $90.60

Cintas $89.50

Core & Main LP $66.34

County Clerk -  CCC $50.00

$783,174.53

For The Meeting On September 15, 2021

Town of Discovery Bay CSD

Fiscal Year 7/21 - 6/22

10



Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date 

September 15, 2021 

Prepared By:     Julie Carter, Finance Manager 
Submitted By:   Michael R. Davies, General Manager 

Agenda Title        
Approve Destruction of Town of Discovery Bay Inactive Records. 

Recommended Action  
Staff recommends that the Board approve the destruction of the District’s inactive records as per attached. 

Executive Summary  
The Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District adopted Resolution 2018-02, the Records Retention Schedule 
on March 7, 2018.  Record Retention Schedules were updated by Department Heads and General Manager approvals on 
January 7, 2020. 

Staff evaluated the District’s inactive records.  Staff recommends the attached list of eligible records be destroyed.  The 
records have all exceeded the retention period per the Record Retention Schedule. Destruction of the records will not 
adversely affect any interest of the District or public.   Staff will hire a professional record destruction firm to handle the 
disposition of the records at a cost not to exceed $1,000. 

Fiscal Impact: Yes  
Amount Requested: 1,000 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes 
Prog/Fund #   Category:        

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 

Attachments: 
List of Records Recommended for Destruction. 

AGENDA ITEM:  C-4 

11



12



13



14



15



16



August 2021

Water and Waste Water Monthly Report 
Town of Discovery Bay

17



Weekly Safety Topics:

8/4 Yard Maintenance Safety Tips

8/11 Defensive Driver Training & Drug and Alcohol Policy

8/18 Water Safety Tips & Top 10 OSHA Violations of 2020

8/25 Safety Data Sheets (SDS)

JJ Keller/ VNA University: 
Personal Protective Equipment: 
Employee Essentials

Safe Work Days: 4,387

Safety & 
Training

18



Active

01
Active

02
Active

06

Active

04
Active 
(Emergency)

05
Active

07

Water Well
Status

Willow WTP

Newport WTP

19



42.86

Production (MG)

3,430

Chemicals (gal)
(Sodium Hypochlorite)

Water Production 
& Chemicals 

Willow WTP

Newport WTP 78.02

Production (MG)

3,619

Chemicals (gal)
(Sodium Hypochlorite)

TOTAL 120.88

Production (MG)

7,049

Chemicals (gal)
(Sodium Hypochlorite)

20



Coliform Samples Collected: 20

Water 
Compliance

Coliform Positive Results: 0

Water Quality Complaints: 0

Hydrant Flushing: 0

Valve Exercising: 0

21



Active

C
Active

D
Active

E

Lift Station
Status

Active

A
Active

F

Active

H
Active

J
Active

R
Active

G
Active

S

Active

Lakeshore

Active

Lakes

Active

Lakes 4

Active

Newport

Active

Bixler

22



0

Total Flow (MG)

400

Polymer (gal)

Wastewater Flow 
& Chemicals 

WW Plant 1

WW Plant 2

0

Influent Flow avg. (MG)

0

Discharge Flow avg. (MG)

35.18

Total Flow (MG)

1.30 1.13

0

Alum (gal)

0

PAC (gal)

Influent Flow avg. (MG) Discharge Flow avg. (MG)

23



Effluent BOD5, mg/L (10): 1.2

Wastewater
Compliance

Effluent TSS, mg/L (10): 0.6

Total Coliform 7 day median (23): ND

Total Coliform daily max (240): ND

Eff NTU daily avg (2): 0

Eff Ammonia (N), mg/L (8.4): ND

Removal BOD5, monthly (85%): 99.5%

Removal TTS, monthly (85%): 99.6%

Conductivity annual avg (2,400): 2,330

24



SSOs: 0

Maintenance
& Improvements 

Customer Inquires: 0

Projects: 

Emergency repairs/upgrade Lift Station E (in progress)
Denitrification Project Coordination (ongoing)
Revise Total Coliform Sample Rule (RTCR) (in progress)
Site Sampling Plan (in progress) 

25



Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date 

September 15, 2021 

Prepared By:     Gregory Harris, District Sewer Engineer 
Submitted By:   Michael Davies, General Manager 

Agenda Title  

Discussion and Possible Action to Authorize Stantec Consulting to develop the Impacts on Wastewater Treatment Plant 
No. 2 and prepare a Water Reuse Feasibility Study for the Cechinni Ranch and other Proposed Development 

Recommended Action 

Authorize the General Manager to Execute the Town’s Standard Profession Services Agreement with Stantec Consulting 
to develop the Impacts on Wastewater Treatment Plant No. 2 and prepare a Water Reuse Feasibility Study for the Cechinni 
Ranch and other Proposed Development in the Amount of $25,000. 

Executive Summary 

Staff has previously discussed the impacts of the Cechinni Ranch development and other smaller parcels on the Town 
water and wastewater facilities.  The Town Board has previously adopted a strategy for staff to follow in dealing with 
these developments.  

Based on this strategy, Staff and the Cechinni development team have agreed the next step on the wastewater side of 
the facilities is to develop the flow and load changes on the existing wastewater treatment plant and to estimate what 
level of reclaimed water use can be achieved for the Cechinni project. This information will be used to develop further 
planning level studies for these projects. Scope of work includes the following. 

1. Develop the additional flow and loading to the WWTP based on the planned retirement community at Cechinni
ranch and a few infill parcels shown on the attached planning area map.

2. Develop water reuse feasibility study for the Cechinni Ranch project including suitability of Discovery Bay
reclaimed water for reuse, estimated reclaimed water flows, and next steps if reclaimed water is going to be
considered further as part of the Cechinni Ranch project.

Per the Staff Strategy adopted by the Board, Development must pay for this analysis.  The Cechinni Development team 
has agreed to pay the full cost of this study and will provide funding to the Town prior to notice to proceed for Stantec.   

Specific Board Action: 

Authorize the General Manager to Execute the Town’s Standard Profession Services Agreement with Stantec Consulting 
to develop the Impacts on Wastewater Treatment Plant No. 2 and prepare a Water Reuse Feasibility Study for the 
Cechinni Ranch and other Proposed Development in the Amount of $25,000 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 

Approval of Staff Strategies for handling the Cechinni Ranch Development, May 2021. 

26



Fiscal Impact: None. 
Amount Requested:  $25,000 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available: Cost is reimbursed by Cechinni Development team. 
Prog/Fund #   Category:   TBD 

Attachments 

Map: Existing and Proposed Sewer and Water Planning Area. 
Scope of Work from Stantec Dated August 24, 2021 

AGENDA ITEM: F-3 

27



Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
3875 Atherton Road, Rocklin CA  95765-3716 

August 24, 2021 

Attention:  Mr. Gregory Harris 
Town of Discovery Bay 
Discovery Bay, CA 

Dear Mr. Harris, 

Reference: Cechinni Ranch and other Proposed Development Impacts on Wastewater Treatment 
Plant No. 2 and Water Reuse Feasibility Study 

We are pleased to present this proposal to provide the Town of Discovery Bay Services District (District) 

with engineering services to investigate the proposed Cechinni Ranch development and other 

miscellaneous parcels identified by the District to determine the impacts to Wastewater Treatment Plant No. 

2 (WWTP 2) and the feasibility of reclaiming the WWTP 2 effluent and/or other water sources for landscape 

irrigation. 

The following scope of work is the first step to determine appropriate buy-in costs for the Cechinni Ranch 

and other miscellaneous developments.  Stantec will conduct this initial investigation on a time and material 

basis, in accordance with the attached fee schedule, for a fee estimate of $24,999.  The total estimated fee 

will not be exceeded without prior written approval of the District.  Should additional out of scope work be 

required or requested by the District, Stantec will prepare a change order for authorizing the additional 

services.   

Task 1 -WWTP 2 Flows and Loads 

Stantec will prepare a technical memorandum (TM-1) for the WWTP 2 Flows and Loads based on 

information provided by the developer on number of dwelling units and expected number of residents, as 

well as information on any non-residential development.  TM-1 will determine average flows and loads for 

the proposed development based on flows and loads for existing development and existing residential 

population with any appropriate adjustments (specifically, adjustments as might be applicable to active adult 

communities) and typical planning data for non-residential development.  Flow and load peaking factors for 

new development shall be assumed to be the same as for existing development as established in the 

Wastewater Treatment Plant Master Plant Update, dated November 2019 (Master Plan).  Total buildout 

flows and loads for the Town of Discovery Bay with Cechinni Ranch and other parcels included shall be 

calculated as the “Baseline Future” flows and loads in the Master Plan plus flows and loads from the 

Cechinni development and other parcels identified by the Town. 

The flows and loads developed in this task will form the foundation for the remainder of the study, including 

determination of required improvements and costs.  Therefore, it is essential to have agreement to the flows 

and loads by all stakeholders.  Accordingly, a technical memorandum on flows and loads shall be prepared 

and submitted for District and developer review and approval prior to proceeding with any analyses of plant 

improvements. 

28



August 24, 2021 

Mr. Gregory Harris 

Page 2 of 3  

Reference: Cechinni Ranch and other Proposed Development Impacts on Wastewater Treatment Plant No. 2 and Water Reuse Feasibility 
Study 

Task 2 – Water Reuse Feasibility Study 

Stantec will prepare TM-2 based on information provided by the developer of Cechinni Ranch and the 

District regarding the feasibility using reclaimed water from the WWTP for landscape irrigation and 

ornamental water features being proposed for Cechinni Ranch and other parcels identified by the District.  

As part of this effort, it may be necessary to dilute, or supplement reclaimed water from the wastewater 

treatment plant with other alternative water supplies.  The alternative water supplies are 1) potable water, 

and 2) the agricultural irrigation water supply used historically on the property.  It is assumed the developer 

and the District will provide information about the proposed community including: 

• A plan for the community showing:

1. Areas (with acreages) to be irrigated.

2. Type of irrigation to be used.

3. Type of plants to be irrigated.  i.e., turf, type of trees, shrubs, etc.

4. Will lagoons be used for bulk water storage?

• Based on information provided, Stantec will perform the following tasks.

1. Evaluate with the Division of Water Rights whether effluent from the current Discovery Bay

community can be transferred from Old River to the proposed development, or whether only the

incremental increase effluent flow resulting from the proposed development as occupancy occurs

can be reclaimed in the proposed development. In the latter case, other water resources will be

needed in decreasing amounts over time with appropriate “backflow” prevention features as

occupancy of the proposed development increases.

2. Evaluate with the Regional Water Board the permitting requirements for the proposed reclamation,

with particular attention being given to any lagoons (these may require a new NPDES permit,

depending on the specific design of the lagoons).

3. Identify permitting reports and equipment that will be needed at the WWTP to produce full Title 22

tertiary effluent for reclamation rather than equivalent tertiary effluent for discharge to Old River.

4. Prepare a preliminary assessment of Title 22 Engineering Report needs for the proposed

reclamation project. These reports have three components: reclaimed water production,

distribution, and use.

5. Compare effluent water quality, potable water quality, and historical agricultural irrigation water

quality to readily available water quality criteria for the landscaping species being proposed, the

irrigation methods being proposed, and the irrigation efficiencies being proposed. This comparison

will include recommendations regarding feasibility of using reclaimed water and alternatives for if

dilution water is needed to bring the effluent to an acceptable quality for the uses proposed.

6. Compare effluent water quality with regards to nuisance staining and spotting potential on fencing,

structures, and automobiles.

7. Based on information resulting from the foregoing tasks, prepare a brief, conceptual project

description for use effluent water supply for landscape irrigation and ornamental water features.

29



August 24, 2021 

Mr. Gregory Harris 

Page 3 of 3  

Reference: Cechinni Ranch and other Proposed Development Impacts on Wastewater Treatment Plant No. 2 and Water Reuse Feasibility 
Study 

8. Identify next steps if policy decisions are made to proceed with reclaimed water use.

9. Prepare a draft technical memorandum (TM-2) for developer and District review and comment

presenting the results of the foregoing information above.

10. Review and discuss developer and District comments on the draft TM-2.

11. Finalize final TM-2 based on Subtask 10.

Schedule 

Stantec will complete draft TMs No. 1 and 2 within 90 days of receiving written notice to procedure and will 

submit final TMs No. 1 and 2 within 30 days of receiving comments from the District.  

Regards, 

Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 

Steven L. Beck, P.E.   
Senior Principal 
Mobile: 916.826.3665  
steven.beck@stantec.com 

30



!A

!A

!A
!A

!A

!A

!

!

Willow
Lake WTP

Newport
Drive 
WTP

WWTP 2

WWTP 1

Cecchini Ranch

L i d o B a y Indian Bay

B
e a v e r B a y

C l i p p e r B
ay

W
in

d
w

a
r d

B
a

y

Sa
n d

Ba
y

M a r i n a

B
a y

D
r a

k
e s

B
ay

C y p r es
s B a y

D
r e

d
g

e
r

C
u

t

I n

d i a n S l o u g h

St.Mar y's Bay

6''

6''

6''

8''

8''

8''

16''

8''

8''

8''

6''

8''

8''

8''

6''

16'' 8''

8''

8''

8''

6''

8''

8''

8''

8''

6''

6''

8''

6''

8''

6''

8''

6''

6''

8''

8''

8''

8''

8''

12''

12''

6''

6''

6''

8''
8''

8''
8''

8''

8''

6''

8''
8''

8''

8''

6''

8''

8''

8''

8''
6''

8''

6''

8''

8''

8''

8''

12''

12''

8''

8''

8''
6''

8''

6''

8''

8''

8''

16''

6''

8''

8''

8''

8''

8''

8''

8''

6''

16''

16''

6''

8''

10''

6''

12''

8''

8''

8''

8''

8''

16''

8''

8''

8''

8''

8''

12''

8''

6''

8''

8''

12''

16''

16''

8''

8''

8''

6''

12''

8''

8''
8''

8''

6''

8''

12''

8''

8''

8''
8'' 12''8''

8''

8''

20''

10''

8''

8''

8''8''

6''

8''

8''

6''

8'
'

8''

14
''

Newport
Point

Pantages

Byron 78

Green Castle
Cir

Green Castle Cir

Im
perial C

t

Key
West

Ct

G
reenfield C

t

Keel Ct

Venice C
t

H
eron D

r

Wayfarer Dr

Pi
sm

o 
C

t

Troon Ct

Monticello Ct

Woodland CtGoleta Pl

Orwood Rd

Mys
tic

 Ct

Echo Pl

Sussex Ct

Dorchester
Ct

Hawthorne Ct

Bo
de

ga
 C

t

Se
ag

ul
l C

t

Bl
ue

 M
es

a 
C

t

C
oa

st
al

 C
t

Po
rts

id
e

C
t

Stirling Ct

Almanor Ct

Asure Ct

Azure Ct

Starboard Ct

WhitmanCt

S 
C

or
al

 C
t

Sail
Ct

Fallm
an R

d

Denali Dr

Yawl St

Bi
xl

er
 R

d

Sa
n 

S
im

eo
n 

C
t

Sa
ns

im
eo

n 
C

t

Wayfarer Ct

Galley Ct

N
au

tic
al

 C
t

D
ic

ki
ns

on
 C

t

Bl
ak

e 
C

t

Tahoe Ct

Marlin Pl

C
ha

nn
el

 D
r

Marlin Dr

M
arlin Pl

S
em

in
ol

e
C

t

Hastings Dr

Rainbow Ct

Gateway Ct
Fairway Ct

Freeport
Ct

M
ar

in
a 

Cir

River Pt

Cap
sta

n P
l

O
as

is
 D

r

Trawler
St

Po
e 

D
r

Augusta Ct
Pier Pt

N
ew

port

Pl S C
o ve

P
l

M
en

do
ci

no
 W

ay

C
al

yp
so

 C
t

Sunset Pt

Superior W
ay

C
ar

di
na

l L
n

SandB
ay

Is le

Bolinas Pl

Merritt Ct

Wilde C
t

Oakmont Ct

C
ol

er
id

ge
 W

ay

Monterey Ct

Am
es

bu
ry

 S
t

State Rte 4

N Anchor Ct

B
er

ks
hi

re
Ln

Sand Point Ct

Almanor
Dr

Fertada Ln

Drakes

Ct

Discovery Bay B
lvd

CoveC
t

Outrigger
Way

Starfish Ct

D
is

co
ve

ry
Ba

y
Blvd

Laguna
Ct

Su
rfs

ide
C

t

R
ee

f C
t

Yosemite Way

Livingston Ct

Ellisa Ln

Key W
est 

Way

Valley Oak Dr

S
he

ll C
t

North Pt

Catalina Way

Double PointW
ay

An
ch

or
ag

e 
W

ay

C
am

br idge
D

r NewportLn

Pyra
mid W

ay

PinehurstC
t

W
ay

fa
re

r
D

r

K
e y

e s
p o

r t
W

ay

B
ea

ve
rCt

Yacht Dr

Learning Ln

Harbor Dr

P
re

st
on

D
r

Lighthouse Pl

Davenport Cir

Fo gho rn

Way

Pescadero Cir

Marlin Dr

Fi
rw

oo
d

C
t

Bay
Harbor W

ay

Spin
nak

erWay

Discovery Pt

South Pt

Shearwater
Cir

Keystone
Loop

Beacon Pl Dolph
in

P
l

Lookout Pt
Lp

E
dg

ev
i e

w
W

ay

H
ar

bo
rH

av
en

Way

NewportD
r

Castlerock
Loop

Crystal Spring

C
ir

Seneca Cir

Fe
rta

do
 L

n

Z

SealWay

C
ypress

P
t

Drakes Dr

Prestwick
Dr

Star
board

Dr

Arcadia Cir

W
ild

eDr

Sailboat Dr

Sa
in

tAndrews Dr

C
lu

bh
ou

se
D

r

Regatta Dr

Winchester Loop

Marina Rd

Cabrillo
Pt

Fallman Blvd

Sand Point Rd

Kellogg Creek Rd

State Rte 4

Ea
gl

e 
Ln

Beaver Ln

Edgeview Dr

Clubhouse Dr

Clubhouse Dr

Cove Ln

C
lubhouseDr

Kellogg Creek Rd

Marsh Creek Rd

W
indw

ard
P

t

Ea
gl

e 
Ln

Balfour Rd

Discovery

Pt

Willow Lake

Rd

Clipper Dr

Fal lm
an

R
d

W
ill

ow
La

ke
R

d

S
Lakefront

Loop

N
ew

po
rt 

D
r

Lakeshore Ci
r

Point of Timber Rd

Cherry Hills Dr

N
La

ke
fro

ntLoop

Orwood Rd

Bi
xl

er
 R

d

Orwood Rd

Lido

Cir

Cabridge CtCabridge Ct

5A

1B

2
6

4A

7

Existing Water System and Future Developments
2020 Urban Water Management Plan
Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District

Figure 3-1

0 2,0001,000
Feet ´

LEGEND
!A Existing District Wells

UnderBayPipes

Treated Water Pipes

Raw Water Pipes

Water System Service Area

Urban Limit Line

Future Developments Display

X:\2020\20-068  Disco Bay - 2020 Urban Water Management Plan\GIS\MXDs\Discovery Bay System Map_Well8 Options.mxd

31

Greg
Rectangle
Current Property Boundary For Plant No. 2.  Plant 2 has water and Sewer Service.

Greg
Polygonal Line
This portion is in agriculture conservation easement.

Greg
Inserted Text
Thi

Greg
Text Box
Land in Conservation Easement

Greg
Callout
All Parcels Inside the Urban Limit Line to be included

Greg
Rectangle

Greg
Text Box
Existing and Proposed Sewer and Water Planning Area

Greg
Text Box
545 acres



32



33










	091521 Agenda Meeting Cover Sheet
	TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
	A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

	091521 Regular BOD Agenda
	C-1 082621 Special BOD Minutes
	OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
	SPECIAL MEETING 2:00 P.M.
	D. CLOSED SESSION:
	TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

	C-2 090121 Regular BOD DRAFT Minutes
	OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
	Registration URL: https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/6729649295969961486
	Webinar ID# 766-493-579

	REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M.
	TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

	C-3 Staff Report Approve Register of District Invoices
	RFA 091521
	C-4 Staff Report - Records Destruction
	C-4-1 Record Retention-Destruction of Records List
	E-1 08-2021 TODB Presentation
	Water and Waste Water Monthly Report �Town of Discovery Bay
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9

	F-3 Staff Report Cechinni Planning
	Agenda Title  

	F-3-1 pro_discovery_bay_cechinni_ranch_initial_study
	F-3-2 Water and Sewer Future Development Study Area-Rev 1
	K-1 Notice of Intent - CCC



